
       Dayton Historic Preservation Commission                 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

                  Date:  January 22, 2020    Time:  6:00 PM 
                 Place: 111 South 1st Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 

                  
 
                                         

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
A. December 18, 2019 

D. DESIGN/SPECIAL VALUATION REVIEW 

A. COA 2020-01: NW Grain Growers (210 E. Main St.) 

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Downtown Dayton, Walking Tour Guide (Staff) 

i. Presentation of current draft; additional changes – would like to complete 
distribution in February  

B. Main Street Sign Report (Staff) 

i. New location required to eliminate easement costs 

C. Pietrzycki Park Sign Report (Smith) 

i. City approved $500 budget 
 

F. NEW  BUSINESS 
 

A. None Scheduled 
 

G. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Commission Roster Updates 

i. Bulter appointment ends 02/28/2020 
1. Reappointment requested? (3-year term) 

B. Nominations for 2020 Chair & Vice-Chair scheduled for regular February 
meeting 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Next Scheduled Meeting 
February 26, 2020 @ 6:00 pm 

111 South 1st Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 



1 
December 18, 2019 DHPC Minutes 

       Dayton Historic Preservation Commission                 
Special Meeting Agenda 

                  Date:  December 18, 2019    Time:  6:00 PM 
                 Place: 111 South 1st Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 

                  
 
 
                                         

A. CALL TO ORDER 
A. Chair Mike Smith called to order the regular meeting of the Dayton Historic 

Preservation Commission at 5:53 p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL 

A. Members present: Mike Smith, Rusty Figgins, Ginny Butler, Carol Lane, and 
J.J. Dippel 

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
A. October 23, 2019 

a. A motion was made by Butler and seconded by Lane to approve the 
October 23, 2019 meeting minutes as presented; none opposed. 
Minutes approved.  

D. DESIGN/SPECIAL VALUATION REVIEW 

A. None presented. 

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. JJ Dippel project update 

i. Dippel announced launch of WISAARD 3.0; there are still properties she 
is unable to print reports on, hopefully the update will allow access to 
print out final reports. Compilation of properties needed 
printed/finalized will be provided – staff will print and finish update.  

ii. Dippel reported that she will be moving to Wenatchee in February. Her 
last meeting with the DHPC will be the regular January meeting.  

B. Downtown Dayton, Walking Tour Guide  

i. The Commission members reviewed the first draft of the brochure; 
various mistakes were noted and discussed; commission members will 
take the brochures and review and offer suggestions at the next 
meeting. Figgins recommended adopting a “Style Manual” to guide the 
update to ensure consistency in the presentation. Lane suggested 



2 
December 18, 2019 DHPC Minutes 

additional language be added to offer more information on the 
Courthouse remodel.  

C. Main Street Signage Report  

i. Butler reported that staff is working on it; the desired location is on the 
property of Chief Springs; staff will offer more of a report at the next 
meeting. 

D. Pietrzycki Park Signage Report  

i. The City has approved a $500 budget for this project; Smith is working 
on getting in touch with the school to initiate the process, will begin that 
on the New Year 

E. Site 5202 Continued 

i. Staff will try to get a new photo in the Spring when water levels are 
higher and the site is more noticeable. 

ii. Smith indicated that there might be an article in The Times regarding 
this story. 

 

F. NEW  BUSINESS 
 

A. None presented. 
 

 

G. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. General Notes 

i. Smith asked if motions should be required when direction is offered to 
staff on newspaper notifications versus staff utilizing general direction 
from the commission; the commission is supportive. 

1. A motion was made by Butler and seconded by Lane that any 
documents sent to the newspaper will require formal motion of 
approval by the commission; none opposed. Motion approved.  

B. Dippel reported that the Minnie Moe article was printed in the Dayton 
Chronicle 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

A. The special meeting of the Dayton Historic Preservation Commission 
adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
December 18, 2019 DHPC Minutes 

Minutes approved by: 
 
 

 
  ________________________________________________ 
  Mike Smith, Chair    Date 
 
      

Attest: 
 
 
 

     _________________________________________________ 
     Meagan Bailey, Planning Director  Date 

 
 



 
1 

COA 2020-01 
210 East Main Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 

Dayton Historic Preservation Commission 
Certificate of Appropriateness 

NW Grain Growers – 210 East Main Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 
  January 22, 2020 

COA 2020—01 
 

 

WHEREAS, Northwest Grain Growers has made an application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness for 210 East Main Street, Dayton, Washington 99328; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposal includes covering the existing sign that reads Columbia County 
Grain Growers with a new sign that reads Northwest Grain Growers; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposed new sign is of like size of the existing sign; and, 
WHEREAS, the proposed new sign is 18’6” wide by 3’ deep, and is comprised of a color 

scheme that includes black, jersey cream, and humble gold lettering and a Northwest Grain 
Growers logo; and, 

WHEREAS, the installation methods of the proposed sign indicates the sign will remain 
flush with the North facing exterior wall; and, 

WHEREAS; the lettering and logo will be backlit with halo-illuminated white leds; and, 
WHEREAS, the building is within the boundaries of the Downtown Dayton Historic 

District; and, 
WHEREAS, the building is a non-contributing structure to the Downtown Dayton Historic 

District; and, 
WHEREAS, the replacement of the sign, as presented, will not create a sense of false 

historicism; and, 
WHEREAS, the replacement will not be detrimental to any historic buildings nearby. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE DAYTON HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The preceding Findings of Fact as stated above are hereby adopted. 
 
Section 2: The commission hereby states that if a building or zoning code cannot be met 
by the design as approved herein, the applicant may not proceed with the installation 
without further amending the plans and requesting an amended Certificate of 
Appropriateness, if necessary. The applicant is responsible for complying with all 
applicable zoning and building codes and for receiving any necessary building permits 
prior to moving forward with the installation.  
 



 
2 

COA 2020-01 
210 East Main Street, Dayton, Washington 99328 

Section 3: Based upon the preceding Findings of Fact, the Commission grants a 
Certificate of Appropriateness to Northwest Grain Growers for the sign installation as 
presented for Northwest Grain Growers at 210 East Main Street, Dayton, Washington 
99328.  
 

Approved by the Dayton Historic Preservation Commission on the 22nd day of January 2020. 
 
 

Dayton Historic Preservation Commission 

 

 

Mike Smith, Chair  

Attest: 

 

 

Meagan Bailey, CFM, Director of Planning & Community 
Development 









#3: 112 N. Second (Convenient Care Clinic) 
Day Building  — 1935 

The Day Building was built for Dr. W.W. Day, the third 
genera on of pioneer Dayton physicians.  The Mission 
Revival style, single‐story stuccoed office building has 
simple wood detail and Spanish  le parapet.  It has 

served con nuously as a medical clinic. 

#4: 222 E. Commercial 
Dayton Historic Depot — 1881 

The Dayton Depot, originally built on the west side of the 
Touchet River, was moved to this site in 1899.  This two‐
story, S ck‐Eastlake‐style building with a cross gable roof 
house the sta on master upstairs.  Note the prominent 
bracket detailing decora ve bargeboards in the gables, 
original siding, windows and doors.  The interior spaces 
are intact and include high ceilings, beaded board walls, 
and wainsco ng. The oldest surviving train sta on in 

Washington State was built by the Oregon Railroad and 
Naviga on Company and later purchased by the Union 
Pacific Railway. The Depot was listed on the Na onal 

Register in 1974. 

#5: 247 E. Main (St. Vincent de Paul) 
Weinhard Block — 1898 

This is a single‐story masonry building with recessed   
parapet panels and buff brick facing.  The original tran‐
som windows are restored and the storefront configura‐

on is intact.  The building originally extended to the 
corner of Second and Main.  Built for Jacob Weinhard 
and known historically as the Weinhard Block , it is 

a ributed to John Mash, architect and contractor.  Its 
general use has always been dry goods. 

#6: 245 E. Main (VS An ques) 
Monne  & Hamilton Hardware — 1910 

This is a single‐story masonry building with buff brick 
facing, recessed parapet panels, transom windows and 
storefront configura ons intact.  Designed by John Nash 
to match the building next door, it was occupied by 
Monne  & Hamilton Hardware for over 60 years. 

#7: 229‐235 E. 
Main (Weinhard 

Hotel) 
Weinhard Building  

— 1890 
The Weinhard 

Building is a two‐
story brick building with dis nc ve brick coursing and 
corbelling at the upper story level.  In 1963  one half of 
the building burned and is now the parking lot for the 
hotel.  German immigrant Jacob Weinhard came to    
Dayton in 1880 and established Jacob Weinhard’s    

Brewery, now demolished.  He operated the Weinhard 
saloon and billiard hall on the ground floor, while the 
second story was used as a lodge hall.  Over the years 

there have been several restaurants, a Safeway store and 
a drug store in the ground floor. 

#8: 217‐225 E. Main (Vacant) 
Guernsey‐Sturdevant Building — 1882 

The Guernsey‐Sturdevant Building is a two‐story, Italianate 
style, brick masonry structure with an elaborate wood 
cornice, formal window surrounds, and intact cast‐iron 

columns. The wood cornice and storefronts were           
renovated in 1992 and the building was listed on the    

Na onal Register in 1993. 

#9: 211 E. Main (Vacant) 
Vacant Building  — 1882 

This two‐story brick masonry building is adorned by five 
round‐arched windows at the second story. This building is 

currently being renovated for future use. 

#10: 112 N. First (Ray’s Barber Shop) 
Dr. Van Pa en’s Office  — 1909 

This is a stuccoed brick building with narrow, segmental 
arched windows and doors. Note the original le ering 

on the door. 

#11: 179 E. Main (Dingles Hardware) 
Budde Building Circa — 1930 

The original 1885 building burned down and was rebuilt 
in 1930. Using the original exterior walls the building 
was rebuilt with the present storefront, double re‐

cessed entries and large display windows. A full width 
span of ver cal transom windows are arranged on both 

the front and on the side of the structure. 

#12: 171 E. Main (Dingles Hardware) 
Dusenberry & Stencil Building  — 1875 

This two‐story brick building with Italianate detailing 
was designed by Dayton architect W.H. Burrows and 
built for Dusenberry and Stencil, early Dayton mer‐

chants. With cast‐iron columns and mul ‐paned second 
story sash windows, I was touted as the first modern 

brick structure in Dayton.  

#13: 159 E. Main (Vacant) 
Robinson Saddle Shop Circa — 1900 

This brick building has ornate corbelled brickwork along 
stepped parapet. Robinson Harness and Saddle Shop 

occupied the building from 1907 to 1940. 

Safely cross the street to con nue the tour. 

#14: 151‐153 E. Main 
(Inland Cellular) 

Dr. C. H. Day Building 
1906 

The original double 
recessed store entrance 
was restored using the 

intact right side as a pa ern. Corner pilaster, transom, 
and brick work were in place. Built as two units for    

offices, shops, and barbershops. 

The Downtown Dayton         
Historic District was placed on 
the Register of Historic Places 

in 1999. 
 

This district includes 29 buildings within a four block  
area.  The nomina on was compiled by the Washington 
State Office of Archeology and Historic Preserva on and 
the Dayton Historic Preserva on Commission.  Contrib‐
u ng buildings have a bronze plaques with historical 
name and date and are listed in this leaflet, some with 

historic interior features. 
 ~ Begin this walking tour at the Columbia County Court-
house, proceed west on Main Street 2 1/2 blocks. Tour 
con nues on south side of Main Street and returns east 

to Third Street. ~ 

#1: 341 E. Main  
Columbia County       

Courthouse — 1887 
The courthouse was 
designed by Dayton  

architect W.H. Burrows.  
This two and one half 
story, stuccoes brick 

Italianate building is topped with a 22 foot lantern, and 
bell cast Mansard roof with iron cres ng.   Dis nc ve 

features include rus cated base, quoins, paired          
segmental arch windows, and pediment statuary.  This 
oldest working courthouse in Washington State was 

listed on the Na onal Register in 1975. 

#2: 309‐311 E. Main (Col. Co. Commissioner & Azure 
Mtn.) Dantzscher Building — 1888 

The Dantzscher Building is a two story brick structure 
with segmental arched, second‐story windows.  A stucco 
finish has been applied.  An Italianate cornice, which was 
removed prior to 1950, has been replaced, we well as 

the 1888 storefront. 



#15: 164 E. Main (Dayton Fitness Center) 
Criss Furniture Building — Circa 1895  

This streamlined concrete building with a stucco finish 
was constructed on the site of the original Weinhard 
Theater, which burned for the third and last  me in 

1916.  

#16: 166 E. Main (Dayton Chamber of Commerce) 
Wooten Building  — Circa 1895 

This small building with 
flanking cast‐iron columns, 
transom windows and brick 
paneling was at one  me 

part of the Dayton         
Mercan le. The original 

display windows have been       
replaced. The building has 
been a café, a furniture 
store, and an auto store. 

#17: 176 E. Main  (Elk Drug)  — 1947 
This stucco over brick structure was rebuilt in the 

Moderns style as a car dealership and gas sta on o the 
site of an early mercan le store. The building was     

remodeled in 1997, but retains the original grooved in 
the upper façade.  

#18: 200 E. Main (Broughton Land Company)                                    
Broughton Building Circa — 1880 

Early fire insurance maps show a building here in 1884 
but local lore says it was here as early as 1877, making 
this the oldest brick build in town. The storefront was 

remodeled in the 1930’s.  

#19: 214 E. Main (Vacant) 
Burde e’s Building — 1898 

This building has been a furniture store, a variety store, 
pool hall and barber shop.  The columns and storefront 
detailing are intact although the windows have been 
replaced.  Inside is an early wooden back bar, counter 

and built‐in refrigerator. 

#20: 230 E. Main (Noble Hunt) 
Engle Building — 1887 

The storefront has the original parapet with pediment.  
Flanking pilasters and transom windows are intact.  
Businesses have been bakery and confec onery,      

general merchandise, and TV store. 

#21: 236 East Main Street (Vaca on Rental) 
Goddard‐McGee — 1887 

This building served as a barber shop and bath un l 
1909.  From 1918 to 1974, a jewelry store occupied this 
loca on. Flanking iron columns and stucco over brick 

façade appear in old photos.   
#22: 238 E. Main (Vacant) 
Wallace Building — 1895 

An unusual building built for Wallace Abstract (and   
insurance) who did business here un l the 1960’s.   
Original wood framed windows with a segmental‐

arched transom and an entrance with granite steps are 
s ll intact.  An ornate pediment has been removed 

from the top of the parapet. 

#23: 242 E. Main (Rey’s Road & EmBee Hair Space) 
Hanan Building — 1889 

This building has housed hardware, general               
merchandise, drug, barber and billiards businesses.  The 
storefront has been recently renovated, but the upper 

façade is intact.    

#24: 250‐254 E. Main (Blue Mtn. Realtors & Vacant) 
Aeils‐Bauers Building — 1900 

Early store fronts with original vents and interior      
skylights were uncovered in 2003. This building reflects 
early 1900’s while the realty shows a 1940’s façade.  

#25: 258 E. Main (Weinhard Café) 
Chandler’s Meat Market — 1900 

An early photo of Chandler’s Market, showing two sets of 
tall double doors folded open to a recessed entry with a 
second set of doors, was used as  a guide for the 2003     

façade reconstruc on.  A canvas awning provided shade.  
Brick pilasters are original.   

#26: 344 E. Main (Liberty Theater) — 1921 
This stucco clad brick was 

remodeled in the 1930’s and 
again in the 1940’s.  Built on 
the site of the old Dreamland 
Theater, which fire destroyed 
in 1919, the theater operated 

un l 1964.  The 2000         
restora on returned the   
cket booth and marquee to 
a 1940’s configura on. 

#27: 350‐352 E. Main (Gravis Law & Pa on &            
Associates) Hubbard Coffee Co. — 1906 

This dis nc ve one‐story brick has the original corbelled 
cornice, decora ve brick panels, large mul ‐paned transom 

windows, and cast‐iron columns.  Outer columns of           
rus cated concrete set off this recently renovated façade.   

#28: 358 E. Main (Snowbird Quil ng) 
Columbia Chronicle — 1908 

With a faint sugges on of Romanesque Revival architecture, 
this building has a street façade of rus cated concrete block.  

A recessed entrance with granite steps and the original 
name of the newspaper on the upper façade makes this 

building stand out.  

#29: 362 E. Main (Carolyn’s Café & Suffield Furniture) 
Suffield Furniture — 1950 

This spare single story building with stucco finish has a     
suspended canopy and an angular recessed entry.  Built in 
the remains of a fire gu ed 1900 building it retains the neon 

sign. 

Thank you for par cipa ng in this historic walking tour! Submit ques ons or 
contact to Dayton City Hall at 111 S. 1st St. 

 

Dayton Historic 
District 

Walking Tour 

Copyright © 1986 By Richard Hashagen 

Columbia County 
Courthouse  

1887 
This brochure and contents are courtesy of The Dayton Historic 

Preservation Commission & The City of Dayton 

111 S. 1st St., Dayton, Washington 99328 

509.382.2361 

Funding provided by the City of Dayton, 2020 


	DHPC 01-22-2020 Agenda.pdf
	Dayton Historic Preservation Commission

	DHPC 12-18-19 Minutes.pdf
	Dayton Historic Preservation Commission

	COA 2020-01 Compiled.pdf
	COA 2020-01.pdf
	COA 2020-01 App.pdf
	NW Grain Growers Dayton Rev7.pdf
	Page 1


	Jan 2020  Draft Brochure.pdf

